#### Minutes

At a meeting of the Full Council held at Council Chamber, County Hall, Preston, on Thursday, 18th October, 2018

#### Present:

County Councillor Anne Cheetham (Chairman)

#### **County Councillors**

T Aldridge A Ali T Ashton A Atkinson M Barron L Beavers J Berry P Britcliffe I Brown P Buckley **J** Burrows Mrs S Charles S Clarke A Clempson Ms L Collinge J Cooney L Cox C Crompton M Dad **B** Dawson F De Molfetta G Dowding G Driver J Eaton C Edwards K Ellard

D Foxcroft

J Fillis A Gardiner J Gibson G Gooch M Green P V Greenall P Hayhurst N Hennessy S Holgate A Hosker D Howarth K Iddon M Igbal A Kay H Khan E Lewis Ms S Malik J Marsh T Martin J Mein J Molineux S C Morris Y Motala E Nash D O'Toole Mrs L Oades G Oliver

**M** Parkinson J Parr M Pattison M Perks E Pope J Potter J Purcell J Rear P Rigby A Riggott M Salter A Schofield D T Smith K Snape A Snowden D Stansfield P Steen J Sumner M Tomlinson C Towneley S Turner A Vincent C Wakeford D Whipp G Wilkins P Williamson **B** Yates

# 1. Apologies and Announcements

Apologies for absence were presented on behalf of County Councillors Terry Burns and John Shedwick.

#### Announcements

#### Deaths

The Chairman reported the recent sad deaths of former County Councillor Anne Smith OBE, who passed away on 12 October 2018, and former County Councillor and Honorary Alderman Vincent Murphy, who passed away on 15 October 2018.

The Council stood in silent tribute.

#### Awards

The Communications Service had recently received a Bronze award in the Public Service Communications Excellence Awards 2018 for its adoption campaign.

Anne Woods, Saf Munshi, Anthony Sergeant and Julie Dobson from the Communications Service were present at Full Council and were congratulated on the award.

The Chairman also referred to a number of other recent successes as follows:

- Of 431 care homes registered with the Care Quality Commission across Lancashire, 409 of these had been rated good or above with 80% rated outstanding, above the North West regional average of 77%.
- The announcement that Elswick had been named Lancashire's Best Kept Village 2018.

Full Council congratulated all of those involved in the above on their success.

## 2. Disclosure of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

No declarations of interest were made.

#### 3. Question Time

County Councillors Malcolm Barron, Nikki Hennessy and Gina Dowding asked their respective questions and the appropriate Cabinet Members responded.

In respect of Question 2, the Chairman advised Full Council that the question had been withdrawn.

# 4. Confirmation of the Minutes from the Meeting held on 19 July 2018

**Resolved:** - That the minutes of the meeting of Full Council held on 19 July 2018 be confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

### 5. Report of the Employment Committee - Appointment of Chief Executive and Director of Resources

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved a report setting out the recommendation of the Employment Committee in respect of the appointment of the Chief Executive and Director of Resources.

As the specified time period for consultation with Cabinet Members on the appointment had not lapsed at the time of agenda publication, the recommendation of the Employment Committee was reported at the meeting.

**Resolved:** - That the appointment of Angie Ridgwell as Chief Executive and Director of Resources, with immediate effect, be approved.

### 6. Policy Position on the Future Provision of Halal Meat

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved a report setting out details of a proposed policy position on the future provision of Halal meat.

In accordance with the requirements of procedural Standing Order B45(4), a recorded vote was taken. The names of the County Councillors who voted for or against the Motion and those who abstained are set out below:

Policy Position on the Future Provision of Halal Meat (Motion)		
CC T Aldridge	For	
CC A Ali	Against	
CC T Ashton	For	
CC A Atkinson	For	
CC M Barron	For	
CC L Beavers	Against	
CC J Berry	For	
CC P Britcliffe	For	
CC I Brown	For	
CC P Buckley	For	
CC J Burrows	For	
CC S Charles	For	
CC A Cheetham	For	
CC S Clarke	For	
CC A Clempson	For	
CC L Collinge	Abstain	
CC J Cooney	Against	
CC L Cox	Against	
CC C Crompton	Abstain	

CC M Dad	Against
CC B Dawson	Abstain
CC F D Molfetta	Against
CC G Dowding	Against
CC G Driver	For
CC J Eaton	For
CC C Edwards	For
CC K Ellard	Abstain
CC D Foxcroft	For
CC J Fillis	Against
CC A Gardiner	For
CC J Gibson	Against
CC G Gooch	For
CC M Green	For
CC P Greenall	For
CC P Hayhurst	Abstain
CC N Hennessy	Against
CC S Holgate	For
CC A Hosker	For
CC D Howarth	For
CC K Iddon	For
CC M lqbal	Against
CC A Kay	For
CC H Khan	Against
CC E Lewis	Against
CC Ms S Malik	Against
CC J Marsh	For
CC T Martin	Against
CC J Mein	Against
CC J Molineux	Against
CC S Morris	For
CC Y Motala	Against
CC E Nash	For
CC D O'Toole	For
CC L Oades	Against
CC G Oliver	Abstain
CC M Parkinson	Against
CC H Parr	Against
CC M Pattison	Abstain
CC M Perks	For
CC E Pope	For
CC J Purcell	For
CC J Rear	For
CC P Rigby	Abstain
CC A Riggott	For
CC M Salter	For
CC A Schofield	For

CC D Smith	For
CC K Snape	For
CC A Snowden	For
CC D Stansfield	For
CC P Steen	For
CC J Sumner	For
CC M Tomlinson	Abstain
CC C Towneley	For
CC S Turner	For
CC A Vincent	For
CC C Wakeford	Against
CC D Whipp	Against
CC G Wilkins	For
CC P Williamson	For
CC B Yates	For
Carried	

Resolved: - That Lancashire County Council will:

- (i) Not provide meat (other than poultry) to LCC establishments unless the animals were stunned before they were slaughtered.
- (ii) Consult with the Lancashire Council of Mosques and others on how the County Council can implement this policy whilst continuing to provide meals which comply with the Muslim community's religious beliefs.
- (iii) Undertake further investigations with the Lancashire Council of Mosques into the stunning of poultry before slaughter.

### 7. Changes to Financial Regulations

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved a report setting out recommendations for the amendment of the Financial Regulations to allow delegation to officers to approve certain amendments to the Capital Programme which would remove the necessity for Cabinet to approve these changes in future. This would enable improved efficiency in the management and monitoring of the Capital Programme and would be overseen by the Capital Board.

#### Resolved: - That:

- (i) The changes to the Financial Regulations relating to Capital Expenditure as set out at Appendix 'A' to the report, now presented, be approved.
- (ii) That the Director of Corporate Services be authorised to make consequential amendments to the Constitution arising from these changes.

# 8. Report by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman on the Blue Badge Service - 20 August 2018

County Councillor Peter Buckley moved a report setting out details of a finding of fault causing injustice after an investigation by the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman. The report set out the actions that had already been taken in response to the Ombudsman's recommendations.

### Resolved: - That:

- (i) The recommendations set out in the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman's report at Appendix 'A', to the report, now presented, be noted.
- (ii) The actions already taken be noted and the further steps proposed in response to the report's recommendation, as set out in the report, now presented, be endorsed.

### 9. Rural Services Network - Appointment of County Council Representative

County Councillor Albert Atkinson moved a report setting out details of a proposal to appoint a county council representative to the Rural Services Network.

**Resolved:** - That the appointment of County Councillor Cosima Towneley as the county council's representative on the Rural Services Network until the annual meeting of Full Council in May 2019, as set out in the report, now presented, be approved.

## 10. Lancashire County Council Timetable of Meetings 2019/20

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved a report setting out details of a draft timetable of Full Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings for the period 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020.

**Resolved:** - That the timetable of Full Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings for the period 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020 inclusive as set out at Appendix 'A' to the report, now presented, be approved.

## 11. Urgent Business

There was no urgent business to be considered.

## 12. Report of the Cabinet (Part B)

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved the report of the Cabinet from its meetings on 12 July 2018, 9 August 2018, and 13 September 2018.

**Resolved:** - That the report of the Cabinet, now presented, be noted.

# 13. Report of an Urgent Key Decision

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved the report of an urgent Key Decision taken since the last meeting of Full Council.

**Resolved:** - That the report of an urgent Key Decision taken since the last meeting of Full Council, now presented, be noted.

### 14(a) The Audit, Risk and Governance Committee

County Councillor Alan Schofield moved the report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee from its meetings on 30 July 2018 and 28 August 2018.

**Resolved:** - That the report of the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee, now presented, be noted.

## 14(b) The Employment Committee

County Councillor Geoff Driver moved the report of the Employment Committee from its meeting on 11 September 2018.

**Resolved:** - That the report of the Employment Committee, now presented, be noted.

#### 14(c) The Pension Fund Committee

County Councillor Eddie Pope moved the report of the Pension Fund Committee from its meetings on 5 July 2018 and 14 September 2018.

**Resolved:** - That the report of the Pension Fund Committee, now presented, be noted.

#### 14(d) The Overview and Scrutiny Committees

County Councillor David O'Toole moved the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees from their meetings as follows:

Children's Services Scrutiny Committee - 4 July 2018 Education Scrutiny Committee - 10 September 2018 Health Scrutiny Committee - 3 July 2018 and 25 September 2018 Internal Scrutiny Committee - 20 July 2018, 21 August 2018 and 21 September 2018

**Resolved:** - That the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees, now presented, be noted.

# 14(e) The Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board

County Councillor Shaun Turner moved the report of the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board from its meeting on 18 September 2018.

**Resolved:** - That the report of the Lancashire Health and Wellbeing Board, now presented, be noted.

# **15.** Report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority

County Councillor Frank De Molfetta moved the report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority from its meeting on 17 September 2018.

**Resolved:** - That the report of the Lancashire Combined Fire Authority, now presented, be noted.

### 16. To consider the Notices of Motion submitted under Standing Order B36

# 1. It was moved by County Councillor Nikki Hennessy and seconded by County Councillor Julie Gibson that:

This Council:

- (i) Will support and sign the Cooperative Party Charter Against Modern Slavery which sets out the following commitments:
  - Train its corporate procurement team to understand modern slavery through the Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply's (CIPS) online course on Ethical Procurement and Supply.
  - Require its contractors to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, wherever it applies, with contract termination as a potential sanction for non-compliance.
  - Challenge any abnormally low-cost tenders to ensure they do not rely upon the potential contractor practising modern slavery.
  - Highlight to its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a trade union and are not to be treated unfairly for belonging to one.
  - Publicise its whistle-blowing system for staff to blow the whistle on any suspected examples of modern slavery.
  - Require its tendered contractors to adopt a whistle-blowing policy which enables their staff to blow the whistle on any suspected examples of modern slavery.
  - Review its contractual spending regularly to identify any potential issues with modern slavery.
  - Highlight for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern slavery and refer them to the relevant agencies to be addressed.

- Refer for investigation via the National Crime Agency's national referral mechanism any of its contractors identified as a cause for concern regarding modern slavery.
- Report publicly on the implementation of this policy annually.
- (ii) Will promote awareness of Modern Day Slavery amongst our residents and work with officers to support survivors.

The following amendment was proposed by County Councillor Geoff Driver and seconded by County Albert Atkinson:

Lancashire County Council is part of a multi-agency Modern Slavery Group and is working with Lancashire Constabulary and other agencies to develop a strategic plan to combat modern slavery and to protect vulnerable people in Lancashire.

Council resolves:

- (i) To note that the County Council already:
  - Requires all contractors to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act 2015.
  - Challenges any abnormally low cost tenders to ensure they do not rely upon the potential contractor practising modern slavery.
  - Regularly reviews contractual spending in order, amongst other things, to identify any potential issues with modern slavery.
  - Reminds its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a trade union.
  - Ensures that officers in the corporate procurement team are trained to understand modern slavery through Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply (CIPS) online course on Ethical Procurement and Supply.
  - Publicises its whistle blowing policy/practice for staff to highlight any suspected cases of modern slavery.
- (ii) That the County Council will in future:
  - Require its tendered contractors to adopt a whistle blowing policy which enables their staff to highlight suspected cases of modern slavery.
  - Highlight for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern slavery to the National Crime Agency's referral mechanism.
  - Request Officers to report annually to Cabinet on the implementation of this policy.
- (iii) To work with the 'Modern Slavery Group' to ensure that the residents of Lancashire are aware of modern slavery and to ensure that victims are given the necessary support.

The amendment was put to the vote and was CARRIED and became the substantive motion.

In accordance with the requirements of procedural Standing Order B45(4), a recorded vote was taken. The names of the County Councillors who voted for or against the Amendment and those who abstained are set out below:

Charter Against Modern Day Slavery (Amendment)		
CC T Aldridge	Against	
CC A Ali	Against	
CC T Ashton	For	
CC A Atkinson	For	
CC L Beavers	Against	
CC J Berry	Against	
CC P Britcliffe	For	
CC I Brown	For	
CC P Buckley	For	
CC J Burrows	For	
CC S Charles	For	
CC A Cheetham	For	
CC S Clarke	For	
CC A Clempson	For	
CC J Cooney	For	
CC L Cox	Against	
CC C Crompton	Against	
CC B Dawson	Against	
CC F D Molfetta	Against	
CC G Dowding	Against	
CC G Driver	For	
CC J Eaton	For	
CC C Edwards	For	
CC D Foxcroft	For	
CC J Fillis	Against	
CC A Gardiner	For	
CC J Gibson	Against	
CC G Gooch	For	
CC M Green	For	
CC P Hayhurst	Against	
CC N Hennessy	Against	
CC S Holgate	Against	
CC D Howarth	For	
CC K Iddon	For	
CC M lqbal	Against	
CC A Kay	For	
CC H Khan	Against	
CC E Lewis	Against	
CC Ms S Malik	Against	

CC J Marsh	For
CC T Martin	Against
CC J Mein	Against
CC J Molineux	Against
CC S Morris	For
CC E Nash	For
CC D O'Toole	For
CC L Oades	Against
CC G Oliver	Against
CC H Parr	Against
CC M Pattison	Against
CC E Pope	For
CC J Purcell	For
CC J Rear	For
CC P Rigby	For
CC A Riggott	For
CC M Salter	For
CC A Schofield	For
CC D Smith	For
CC K Snape	Against
CC A Snowden	For
CC D Stansfield	For
CC P Steen	For
CC M Tomlinson	Against
CC C Towneley	For
CC S Turner	For
CC A Vincent	For
CC C Wakeford	For
CC D Whipp	For
CC G Wilkins	For
CC P Williamson	For
CC B Yates	For
Carried	

The substantive motion was then put to the vote and was CARRIED. It was therefore:

#### **Resolved:** -

- (i) To note that the County Council already:
  - Requires all contractors to comply fully with the Modern Slavery Act 2015.
  - Challenges any abnormally low cost tenders to ensure they do not rely upon the potential contractor practising modern slavery.
  - Regularly reviews contractual spending in order, amongst other things, to identify any potential issues with modern slavery.

- Reminds its suppliers that contracted workers are free to join a trade union.
- Ensures that officers in the corporate procurement team are trained to understand modern slavery through Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply (CIPS) online course on Ethical Procurement and Supply.
- Publicises its whistle blowing policy/practice for staff to highlight any suspected cases of modern slavery.
- (ii) That the County Council will in future:
  - Require its tendered contractors to adopt a whistle blowing policy which enables their staff to highlight suspected cases of modern slavery.
  - Highlight for its suppliers any risks identified concerning modern slavery to the National Crime Agency's referral mechanism.
  - Request Officers to report annually to Cabinet on the implementation of this policy.
- (iii) To work with the 'Modern Slavery Group' to ensure that the residents of Lancashire are aware of modern slavery and to ensure that victims are given the necessary support.

# 2. It was moved by County Councillor Kim Snape and seconded by County Councillor Matthew Tomlinson that:

Lancashire County Council notes the consultation due to be launched by Our Health Our Care regarding the future of Accident & Emergency services in the Chorley, South Ribble and Preston areas. The Council strongly opposes any proposal for a single site Accident & Emergency at either Preston or Chorley & South Ribble Hospital. The Council believes such a proposal would have a detrimental impact on the quality of local health care for the local population and that Chorley & South Ribble Hospital along with Preston Hospital both need a 24 hour Accident & Emergency department.

The following amendment was proposed by County Councillor Shaun Turner and seconded by County Councillor Charles Edwards:

Lancashire County Council notes the consultation due to be launched by Our Health Our Care regarding the future of Accident & Emergency services in the Chorley, South Ribble and Preston areas. Council notes the range of opinions expressed by the public, partner organisations, and experts in the provision of emergency and urgent medicine on how best to provide emergency care in central Lancashire, and recognises that it would be premature for the council to take a position before a full consultation on all of the options is undertaken, including a full analysis of the impact on the quality of local health care for the local population.

Council therefore:

- Calls upon the NHS, under the Our Health Our Care programme, to undertake a full consultation exercise, setting out all of the options.
- Recognises that the quality of care for the people of Preston, South Ribble and Chorley should be the priority in determining the future configuration of services.
- Requests that the Health Scrutiny Committee, on behalf of the authority, examines the proposals in detail to assess the impact of the proposals and whether they are in the interests of the health of the people of the area, and exercises its statutory powers accordingly.

The amendment was put to the vote and was CARRIED and became the substantive motion.

In accordance with the requirements of procedural Standing Order B45(4), a recorded vote was taken. The names of the County Councillors who voted for or against the Amendment and those who abstained are set out below:

Our Health Our Care A&E Proposals (Amendment)		
CC T Aldridge	Against	
CC A Ali	Against	
CC T Ashton	For	
CC A Atkinson	For	
CC L Beavers	Against	
CC P Britcliffe	For	
CC I Brown	For	
CC P Buckley	For	
CC J Burrows	For	
CC S Charles	For	
CC A Cheetham	For	
CC S Clarke	For	
CC A Clempson	For	
CC J Cooney	For	
CC L Cox	Against	
CC C Crompton	Against	
CC B Dawson	Against	
CC F D Molfetta	Against	
CC G Dowding	For	
CC G Driver	For	
CC J Eaton	For	
CC C Edwards	For	
CC D Foxcroft	For	
CC J Fillis	Against	
CC A Gardiner	For	
CC J Gibson	Against	
CC G Gooch	For	
CC M Green	For	

CC P Hayhurst	Against
CC N Hennessy	Against
CC S Holgate	Against
CC D Howarth	For
CC K Iddon	For
CC M Iqbal	Against
CC A Kay	For
CC H Khan	Against
CC E Lewis	Against
CC Ms S Malik	Against
CC J Marsh	For
CC T Martin	Against
CC J Mein	Against
CC J Molineux	Against
CC S Morris	For
CC E Nash	For
CC D O'Toole	For
CC L Oades	Against
CC G Oliver	Against
CC H Parr	Against
CC M Pattison	Against
CC E Pope	For
CC J Purcell	For
CC J Rear	For
CC P Rigby	For
CC A Riggott	For
CC M Salter	For
CC A Schofield	For
CC D Smith	For
CC K Snape	Against
CC A Snowden	For
CC D Stansfield	For
CC P Steen	For
CC M Tomlinson	Against
CC C Towneley	For
CC S Turner	For
CC A Vincent	For
CC C Wakeford	For
CC D Whipp	For
CC G Wilkins	For
CC P Williamson	For
CC B Yates	For
Carried	

The substantive motion was then put to the vote and was CARRIED. It was therefore:

#### Resolved: - That:

Lancashire County Council notes the consultation due to be launched by Our Health Our Care regarding the future of Accident & Emergency services in the Chorley, South Ribble and Preston areas. Council notes the range of opinions expressed by the public, partner organisations, and experts in the provision of emergency and urgent medicine on how best to provide emergency care in central Lancashire, and recognises that it would be premature for the council to take a position before a full consultation on all of the options is undertaken, including a full analysis of the impact on the quality of local health care for the local population.

Council therefore:

- Calls upon the NHS, under the Our Health Our Care programme, to undertake a full consultation exercise, setting out all of the options.
- Recognises that the quality of care for the people of Preston, South Ribble and Chorley should be the priority in determining the future configuration of services.
- Requests that the Health Scrutiny Committee, on behalf of the authority, examines the proposals in detail to assess the impact of the proposals and whether they are in the interests of the health of the people of the area, and exercises its statutory powers accordingly.

# 3. It was moved by County Councillor Nikki Hennessy and seconded by County Councillor Margaret Pattison that:

Council welcomes the recent commitment by the Scottish Government and the Private Members Bill by Monica Lennon MSP to tackle period poverty through the free provision of sanitary products in educational establishments and notes that Scotland is one of the first countries in the world to tackle 'period poverty' through a pilot scheme in Aberdeen.

Council recognises however that whilst many women and girls will benefit from this, others in vulnerable situations, may not.

Lancashire County Council therefore instructs the Director of Public Health to consult with women and girls, to develop and implement an action plan to introduce free sanitary products, including menstrual cups, in schools in Lancashire and to scope out extending access to others.

The following amendment was proposed by County Councillor Shaun Turner and seconded by County Councillor Cosima Towneley:

Council welcomes the recent commitment from the Scottish Government to tackle Period Poverty and the pledge from the Minister for Women, Victoria Atkins, to remove VAT from sanitary products following Brexit. Council notes research that suggests one in ten girls have at some point been unable to afford sanitary products with 49% having missed an entire day of school because of their period.

Council also notes some of the work already going on in this area from the likes of Red Box, The Girl Guiding Association and the sanitary ware manufacturer, Always.

Council recognises however that whilst many women and girls will benefit from this, there is scope to work with partners to provide help to others who may be in vulnerable situations.

Lancashire County Council therefore:

- Instructs the Director of Public Health to produce a report to the Health Scrutiny Committee on the issue of Period Poverty and how it can best be addressed.
- Commits to work with all our partners including the NHS, Schools, Colleges, Universities and those mentioned above to understand the local issues, raise awareness and tackle stigma.

Subject to minor changes to the wording, the amendment was accepted and became the substantive motion. The substantive motion was then put to the vote and was CARRIED. It was therefore:

#### Resolved: - That:

Council welcomes the recent commitment from the Scottish Government to tackle Period Poverty and the pledge from the Minister for Women, Victoria Atkins, to remove VAT from sanitary products following Brexit.

Council notes research that suggests one in ten girls have at some point been unable to afford sanitary products with 49% having missed an entire day of school because of their period.

Council also notes some of the work already going on in this area from the likes of Red Box, The Girl Guiding Association and the sanitary product manufacturer, Always.

Council recognises however that whilst many women and girls will benefit from this, there is scope to work with partners to provide help to others who may be in vulnerable situations.

Lancashire County Council therefore:

• Instructs the Director of Public Health to produce a report to the Health Scrutiny Committee on the issue of Period Poverty and how it can best be addressed.

• Commits to work and consult with all our partners including the NHS, girls, Schools, Colleges, Universities and those mentioned above to understand the local issues, raise awareness and tackle stigma.

# 4. It was moved by County Councillor Gina Dowding and seconded by County Councillor Paul Hayhurst that:

Council notes:

The Joint Lancashire Minerals and Waste Local Plan is currently under review.

Council believes:

That in light of the controversial processes currently underway within the County for exploration and appraisal, and ultimately production of unconventional hydrocarbons, it is imperative that the Minerals and Waste Local Plan includes criteria for the production of hydrocarbons within the plan.

Council resolves:

As part of the review:

- To instruct officers to include a section in the Minerals and Waste Local Plan on criteria related to the production of hydrocarbons.
- To include a criterion for production of hydrocarbons which takes into account the growing need for action on reducing carbon emissions.

This is in line with ongoing UK government commitments in the 2008 Climate Change Act and as signatories to the COP21 Paris Agreement. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) support a move to a low carbon future and NPPG provides examples of where hydrocarbon extraction proposals can integrate mitigation measures.

On being put to the vote, the motion was LOST.

A fifth Notice of Motion put forward by County Councillor Gina Dowding was not dealt with as it was out of time and was held over to the next meeting of Full Council on 13 December 2018 in accordance with Standing Order B35.

Angie Ridgwell Chief Executive and Director of Resources

County Hall Preston